IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SUPREME COURT NO: 83,954

1ST DCA CASE NO: 92-3833

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

JUL 15 1994

Chilef Deputy Clerk

By\_

**ROBERT DAVID DOMBERG, JR.** 

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

## BRIEF ON JURISDICTION OF PETITIONER ROBERT DAVID DOMBERG

BRADLEY R. STARK, ESQUIRE 2910 New World Tower 100 Biscayne Boulevard Miami, Florida 33132 (305) 372-1223

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is a petition asking this court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction and review the opinion of the First District Court of Appeal in *Domberg v. State*, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D430 (Fla. 1st DCA Mar. 4, 1994).<sup>1</sup> Appendix A. Judgment and conviction were entered in the Second Judicial Circuit in and for Leon County, Florida after a change of venue from the Third Judicial Circuit in Columbia County, Florida. The guidelines score sheet reflects a recommended range of 15 years incarceration. The trial court departed upward and sentenced Domberg v. State, 518 So. 2d 1360 (Fla. 1st DCA), *rev. denied*, 529 So. 2d 693 (Fla. 1988).<sup>2</sup> Appendix B. On November 10, 1992 Domberg filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus for Ineffective Assistance of Appellate Counsel. The court denied the petition. The Petition for Rehearing was denied. Appendix C.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The recent opinion of the First District Court of Appeal is referred to as *Domberg II*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The direct appeal is referred to as *Domberg I*.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

#### I

#### DOMBERG II CREATES CONFLICT BY REFUSING TO RECOGNIZE THE "PIPELINE DOCTRINE"

The "pipeline doctrine" requires a court to apply the law as it exists at the time of direct appeal rather than the time of the error in the trial court. Instead in *Domberg II* the court applied the law as it existed at the time of sentencing rather than as it existed at the time the appeal became final four years later. This conflicts with precedent in this court and every district court of appeal.

Π

#### DOMBERG II CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT HOLDS THAT THE SENTENCING JUDGE "IMPLICITLY ADOPTED" THE ARGUMENTS OF THE STATE WITH NO ORAL AND EFFECTIVELY NO WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE

There were no oral and effectively no written reasons for departure. Instead *Domberg II* holds that the filing of a motion for departure and argument of the motion by the state were sufficient to satisfy the requirement of contemporaneous written reasons for departure. *Domberg II* holds that the trial court "implicitly adopted" the argument of the state by imposing a departure sentence. This clearly conflicts with established precedent at the time *Domberg I* became final on direct appeal. This court and two other district courts of appeal clearly hold that a trial judge cannot adopt the argument or pleadings of a party to satisfy "a function committed exclusively to the judiciary" for the filing of contemporaneous written reasons for departure.<sup>3</sup> As *Domberg II* noted, because the written reasons were filed after the court was divested of jurisdiction there were no oral and effectively no written reasons for departure.

#### Ш

#### **DOMBERG II** CORRECTLY HOLDS THAT WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE CANNOT BE FILED AFTER THE COURT IS DIVESTED OF JURISDICTION, BUT CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT FAILS TO APPLY THIS PRINCIPLE IN DOMBERG II

If *Domberg II* considered the written reasons filed after the court was divested of jurisdiction, despite the recitation by the court of a rule stating that written reasons filed after divestment of jurisdiction cannot be

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Johnson v. State, 483 So. 2d 839 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986).

considered, then *Domberg II* also conflicts with this court and three other district courts of appeal. Once the court was divested of jurisdiction the filing of written reasons for departure was a nullity and could not be considered.

#### IV

#### **REASONS TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION**

Domberg II is a major inroad into the separation between the branches of government. Domberg II establishes dangerous separation of powers precedent by holding that the actions of the state in the filing and arguing of a motion for departure were a sufficient substitute for a legislatively mandated action on the part of the trial judge. No citizen can ever feel that the judiciary is independent and fair when an argument and motion by a prosecutor is a complete and satisfactory substitute for the exclusively judicial function of issuing "contemporaneous written reasons" for a 110 year departure sentence.

The "pipeline doctrine" is fundamental to the appellate process. Every appellate case is affected by this doctrine. Post conviction proceedings comprise a large amount of all appellate litigation. *Domberg II* creates precedent which insures that a large number of future cases will be wrongly decided. An illegal departure sentence from 15 years to 110 years is too great an injustice to go uncorrected.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is a petition asking this court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction and review the opinion of the First District Court of Appeal in *Domberg v. State*, 19 Fla. L. Weekly D430 (Fla. 1st DCA Mar. 4, 1994).<sup>1</sup> Appendix A. Judgment and conviction were entered in the Second Judicial Circuit in and for Leon County, Florida after a change of venue from the Third Judicial Circuit in Columbia County, Florida. The guidelines score sheet reflects a recommended range of 15 years incarceration. The trial court departed upward and sentenced Domberg to 110 years. Domberg appealed his conviction and the First District Court of Appeal affirmed. *Domberg v. State*, 518 So. 2d 1360 (Fla. 1st DCA), *rev. denied*, 529 So. 2d 693 (Fla. 1988).<sup>2</sup> Appendix B. On November 10, 1992 Domberg filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus for Ineffective Assistance of Appealate Counsel. The court denied the petition. The Petition for Rehearing was denied. Appendix C.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The recent opinion of the First District Court of Appeal is referred to as *Domberg II*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The direct appeal is referred to as *Domberg I*.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

#### I

#### DOMBERG II CREATES CONFLICT BY REFUSING TO RECOGNIZE THE "PIPELINE DOCTRINE"

The "pipeline doctrine" requires a court to apply the law as it exists at the time of direct appeal rather than the time of the error in the trial court. Instead in *Domberg II* the court applied the law as it existed at the time of sentencing rather than as it existed at the time the appeal became final four years later. This conflicts with precedent in this court and every district court of appeal.

II

# *DOMBERG II* CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT HOLDS THAT THE SENTENCING JUDGE "IMPLICITLY ADOPTED" THE ARGUMENTS OF THE STATE WITH NO ORAL AND EFFECTIVELY NO WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE

There were no oral and effectively no written reasons for departure. Instead *Domberg II* holds that the filing of a motion for departure and argument of the motion by the state were sufficient to satisfy the requirement of contemporaneous written reasons for departure. *Domberg II* holds that the trial court "implicitly adopted" the argument of the state by imposing a departure sentence. This clearly conflicts with established precedent at the time *Domberg I* became final on direct appeal. This court and two other district courts of appeal clearly hold that a trial judge cannot adopt the argument or pleadings of a party to satisfy "a function committed exclusively to the judiciary" for the filing of contemporaneous written reasons for departure.<sup>3</sup> As *Domberg II* noted, because the written reasons were filed after the court was divested of jurisdiction there were no oral and effectively no written reasons for departure.

#### Ш

#### DOMBERG II CORRECTLY HOLDS THAT WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE CANNOT BE FILED AFTER THE COURT IS DIVESTED OF JURISDICTION, BUT CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT FAILS TO APPLY THIS PRINCIPLE IN DOMBERG II

If *Domberg II* considered the written reasons filed after the court was divested of jurisdiction, despite the recitation by the court of a rule stating that written reasons filed after divestment of jurisdiction cannot be

<sup>3</sup> Johnson v. State, 483 So. 2d 839 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986).

considered, then *Domberg II* also conflicts with this court and three other district courts of appeal. Once the court was divested of jurisdiction the filing of written reasons for departure was a nullity and could not be considered.

#### IV

#### **REASONS TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION**

Domberg II is a major inroad into the separation between the branches of government. Domberg II establishes dangerous separation of powers precedent by holding that the actions of the state in the filing and arguing of a motion for departure were a sufficient substitute for a legislatively mandated action on the part of the trial judge. No citizen can ever feel that the judiciary is independent and fair when an argument and motion by a prosecutor is a complete and satisfactory substitute for the exclusively judicial function of issuing "contemporaneous written reasons" for a 110 year departure sentence.

The "pipeline doctrine" is fundamental to the appellate process. Every appellate case is affected by this doctrine. Post conviction proceedings comprise a large amount of all appellate litigation. *Domberg II* creates precedent which insures that a large number of future cases will be wrongly decided. An illegal departure sentence from 15 years to 110 years is too great an injustice to go uncorrected.

#### ARGUMENT

#### I

#### DOMBERG II CREATES CONFLICT BY REFUSING TO RECOGNIZE THE "PIPELINE DOCTRINE"<sup>4</sup>

The lower court held that to determine whether Domberg received ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, it must "turn back the appellate clock,' to determine whether an absence of contemporaneous written reasons was cognizable error in 1984 when Domberg was sentenced." *Domberg II*, at 431. The *Domberg II* court denied the Writ of Habeas Corpus because "(i)n view of the unsettled state of guidelines sentencing law in 1984," appellate counsel was not ineffective.<sup>5</sup> *Id.* This was error because the direct appeal was not final until 1988. *Domberg I*, 518 So. 2d 1360.<sup>6</sup> Thus in *Domberg II* the First District Court of Appeal erroneously used the case law in 1984 to determine the adequacy of appellate counsel in an appeal that was decided four years later.<sup>7</sup> Clear precedent as to sentencing issues establishes that an appellate court should apply the law as it exists at the time of the appeal since the case was in the "pipeline" on appeal at the time other precedents were established. This clearly conflicts with the law in this court and in every other district court of appeal in the state.

<sup>6</sup> A determination of the ineffective assistance of appellate counsel claim should be guided by the law applicable when *Domberg I* became final. The conviction became final when review was denied in *Domberg I*. See, State v. Gallo, 491 So. 2d 541 (Fla. 1986). Until that time, the case was in the "pipeline".

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The application of the law as it exists at the time of appeal rather than the time of the error in the trial court is known as the "pipeline doctrine". This phrase was coined in Smith v. State, 496 So. 2d 983 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986), as this court noted in Smith v. State, 598 So. 2d 1063 (Fla. 1992). Although the term "pipeline doctrine" was adopted in 1986, the rule of law that the term describes was the rule of law at the time *Domberg I* became final. *E.g.*, Lowe v. State, 437 So. 2d 142, 144 (Fla. 1983); see also State v. Jones, 485 So. 2d 1283 (Fla. 1986) (case law at time of appeal controls); Duggan v. Wainwright, 470 So. 2d 697 n.13 (Fla. 1984) (in a habeas corpus proceeding for ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, determination is made at the time of appeal).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The court in *Domberg II* cites Frazier v. Singletary, 622 So. 2d 88 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993), a habeas corpus case for ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, for this proposition. *Frazier* holds that in making a determination regarding ineffective assistance of appellate counsel the issue is whether the "error (was) cognizable at the time Petitioner directly appealed his convictions in 1963." *Id.* at 89. *Frazier* was decided on direct appeal in 1963. Frazier v. State, 488 So. 2d 166 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) *rev. denied* 494 So. 2d 1150 (Fla. 1986). It is not clear whether Frazier was sentenced in 1963 or the appeal was decided in 1963. It appears that the *Domberg II* court has misapplied its own precedent by 'turning the clock back' to the time of sentencing.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> No contemporaneous objection was required to raise the issue of an illegal departure sentence on appeal, therefore the issue was preserved and the "pipeline doctrine" was applicable. *E.g.*, State v. Whitfield, 487 So. 2d 645 (Fla. 1986); Bruton v. State, 489 So. 2d 1195 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986), *rev'd. on other grounds*, 510 So. 2d 1243 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987).

This court and every other district court is in conflict with *Domberg II*. All of the following cases are ineffective assistance of appellate counsel claims in which courts have applied the law at the time the appeal was decided and not the law at the time the error occurred in the trial court, to determine the effectiveness of appellate counsel. All of these cases are in direct conflict with *Domberg II*. *Hill v. Dugger*, 556 So. 2d 1385 (Fla. 1990); *Fitzpatrick v. Wainwright*, 490 So. 2d 938 (Fla. DCA 1986); *Wigfals v. Singletary*, 624 So. 2d 320 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993); *Jones v. Singletary*, 621 So. 2d 760 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993); *Wilson v. Singletary* 601 So. 2d 311 (4th DCA 1992); *Disinger v. State*, 574 So. 2d 268 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991). These cases involve ineffective assistance of appellate counsel for the failure to raise issues regarding written reasons for departure sentences.

The case of *Hernandez v. State*, 501 So. 2d 163 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987) also directly conflicts with the holding in *Domberg II*. In *Hernandez* the court granted a Writ of Habeas Corpus for ineffective assistance of appellate counsel for the failure to raise as error on appeal a sentence outside the guidelines, without written reasons. The court in *Hernandez* applied the law as it existed at the time of the appeal, rather than at the time of sentencing.<sup>8</sup>

The holding in *Domberg II* refuses to recognize the "pipeline doctrine".<sup>9</sup> The First District Court of Appeal also failed to apply the "pipeline doctrine" to departure sentencing issues in *Kilo v. State*, 578 So. 2d 833 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991). Despite the clear rule this court articulated in *Williams v. State*, 576 So. 2d 281 (Fla. 1991) which held that cases in the "pipeline" receive the benefit of Ree,<sup>10</sup> the First District Court of Appeal in *Kilo* erroneously applied the laws that existed at the time of sentencing rather than as they existed at the time the appeal was decided.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> The court in *Domberg II* notes that the law regarding contemporaneous written departure reasons "was not settled definitively until 1990 with the issuance of *Ree.*" *Domberg II* at 431. Mcrely because the law was in flux does not mean that an appellate attorney could not render ineffective assistance of appellate counsel on a sentencing issue between 1984 and 1990. *Wigfals*, 624 So. 2d 320; *Jones*, 621 So. 2d 760; *Wilson*, 601 So. 2d 311; *Hernandez*, 501 So. 2d 163.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> This court recently clarified and reaffirmed this doctrine as a "blanket application" to all cases. *Smith*, 598 So. 2d 1063.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Ree v. State, 565 So. 2d 1329 (Fla. 1990).

# *DOMBERG II* CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT HOLDS THAT THE SENTENCING JUDGE "IMPLICITLY ADOPTED" THE ARGUMENTS OF THE STATE WITH NO ORAL AND EFFECTIVELY NO WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE<sup>11</sup>

Absolutely no oral reasons were articulated, either directly or indirectly by reference, at the time the departure sentence was imposed. Appendix D. *Domberg II* holds that the motion for departure by the state and its debate by the prosecutor at the sentencing hearing, satisfies the legislative requirement of contemporaneous written reasons for the imposition of a departure sentence. *See* § 921.001(5) Fla. Stat. 1987; Note to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.701(d)(11).<sup>12</sup>

The *Domberg II* court found that because there were reasons for departure urged by the state in a memorandum "ten days prior to the sentencing hearing", and because "the transcript reflects these proposed reasons were referred to by respective counsel at the sentencing hearing", it can be inferred that the reasons for departure suggested by the state were "implicitly adopted" by the trial court when it announced that a departure sentence would be imposed." *Id.* at 431. This directly conflicts with precedent in this court and two district courts of appeal.

In Barbera v. State, 505 So. 2d 413 (Fla. 1987) the court orally announced that it was adopting the pleading filed by defense counsel as its written order of departure. This court in Barbera held that "a formulation of reasons for departure is 'a function committed exclusively to the judiciary'. Johnson, 483 So. 2d at 839. That function must be performed by the trial judge and cannot be delegated to others. See Id. at 840. Wilson v. State, 485 So. 2d 42 (Fla. 5th DCA 1986)." Barbera, 505 So. 2d at 414. This court noted in Barbera that the trial court "accepted someone else's reasons for departure and did not, himself, express those reasons in an appropriate manner." Id. at 414. See also Graynor v. State, 479 So. 2d 246 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985) (sentencing judge may not

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Domberg II held that "we find the Lyles rationale to be particularly relevant." Id. at 431. Domberg II found this to be "(a) further basis to reject petitioner's claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel." Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> A departure sentence with absolutely no oral or written reasons was clearly prohibited at the time *Domberg I* was decided. *E.g.*, State v. Jackson, 478 So. 2d 1054 (Fla. 1985) (oral reasons alone are insufficient); Shull v. Dugger, 515 So. 2d 748 (Fla. 1987) (no departure permitted once appellate court reverses reasons for departure sentence).

merely adopt the argument of a party reasons for departure but must articulate his own reasons for departure); *Carnegie v. State*, 473 So. 2d 782 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985) (court must articulate reasons for departure and may adopt by reference those urged by party). The facts in *Domberg II* where the sentencing judge made absolutely no statement, are more egregious than in *Barbera*. Clearly *Domberg II* explicitly conflicts with *Barbera*, *Wilson*, *Johnson*, *Graynor* and *Carnegie*.

The case of *Wilson* illustrates the nature of the conflict with *Domberg II*. In *Wilson* the court held that it was not sufficient for the sentencing judge to orally announce that it was following the recommendation made by the state for departure. In *Domberg II* the trial court made no announcement that it was adopting the argument of the state, but merely that the trial court "implicitly adopted" this argument by imposing a departure sentence. Thus the error in *Domberg II* is more egregious than in *Wilson*.

Domberg II creates conflict by misapplying the rationale of State v. Lyles, 576 So. 2d 706 (Fla. 1991) when it held that from the imposition of a departure sentence, it can be concluded that the trial court has 'implicitly adopted' the argument of the state.<sup>13</sup> In Lyles the trial judge gave detailed oral reasons for departure totaling approximately two hundred words. Lyles, 576 So. 2d at 707. Lyles held that when express oral findings of fact and articulated reasons for the departure are made from the bench and then reduced to writing without substantive change at a later date, the written reasons for the departure sentence are contemporaneous, in accordance with Ree.<sup>14</sup> This is in great contrast to the sentencing hearing in Domberg II where the court gave absolutely no oral reasons and effectively no written reasons, since the written reasons could not be considered because the court was divested of jurisdiction when filed.<sup>15</sup> Domberg II at 431.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Because Domberg II misapplies Lyles, it is in direct conflict with Lyles. Lyles holds that a written order is contemporaneous when detailed oral reasons are given at a sentencing hearing and the subsequent written order is essentially the same. Since the facts in Domberg II are completely inapposite, with absolutely no oral reasons and effectively no written reasons, Domberg II conflicts with the holding in Lyles.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Ree, 565 So. 2d 1329. As the Domberg II court noted "Ree is not applicable in this case." Domberg II at 431. Thus the reliance upon Lyles, a case which interprets Ree, is not applicable to the case before the court.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Domberg II correctly stated that "(t)he notice of appeal was filed timely on November 21, 1984, at which point jurisdiction vested in this court." *Id.* at 430. Written reasons filed after the divestment of jurisdiction are a nullity and cannot be considered by the court. As *Domberg II* correctly noted "(o)nce a notice of appeal has been filed from a properly rendered judgment, a trial court is without jurisdiction to file written reasons for

#### **DOMBERG II** CORRECTLY HOLDS THAT WRITTEN REASONS FOR DEPARTURE CANNOT BE FILED AFTER THE COURT IS DIVESTED OF JURISDICTION, BUT CREATES DIRECT CONFLICT WHEN IT FAILS TO APPLY THIS PRINCIPLE IN DOMBERG II

Domberg II held that the untimely written reasons were "redundant".<sup>16</sup> The order filed December 3, 1984 was after the notice of appeal had been filed and jurisdiction had vested in the appellate court. It is not clear whether the court in *Domberg II* considered the untimely written reasons for departure or whether this ruling that the written reasons were redundant was an alternative argument by the court. If the court in *Domberg II* considered these untimely written reasons, then conflict is created because the court lacked jurisdiction to file them. If the court in *Domberg II* did not consider these written reasons, then the opinion creates conflict.

Domberg II holds that "(i)n view of the unsettled state of guidelines sentencing law in 1984, particularly with respect to guidelines departure sentences, we conclude petitioner's appellate lawyers were not outside the range of professionally acceptable representation in failing to challenge the departure sentence on the jurisdictional grounds asserted in Domberg's petition." *Id.* at 431. In effect *Domberg II* holds that the lack of jurisdiction to file written reasons for departure after a notice of appeal had been filed was an issue that was unsettled in 1984. This ruling conflicts with long established precedent not only at the time of appeal, but also at the time of sentencing. This precedent holds that the court is divested of jurisdiction upon the filing of a notice of appeal. *Wilson v. State*, 437 So. 2d 174 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983) (court divested of jurisdiction upon filing notice of appeal); *Smith v. State*, 407 So. 2d 399 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981) (after notice of appeal court cannot modify or correct or change a sentence). *Green v. State*, 527 So. 2d 277, 278 (Fla. 2d DCA 1988) and *State v. Williams*, 515 So. 2d 1051 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987) clearly conflict with *Domberg II* and were precedent at the time *Domberg* 

departure. Davis v. State, 606 So. 2d 470 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992); Wright v. State, 617 So. 2d 837, 841 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993); Vara v. State, 575 So. 2d 306, 307 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991); State v. McCray, 544 So. 2d 313 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989), *approved*, 557 So. 2d 33 (Fla. 1990); Hawryluk v. State, 543 So. 2d 1318 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989); State v. Ealy, 533 So. 2d 1173, 1174 (Fla. 2d DCA 1988)." *Domberg II* at 430.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Domberg II concludes that because the trial court "implicitly adopted" the position of the state by imposing a departure sentence, "in essence, the order filed December 3, 1984, setting forth the aggravating factors, was redundant." *Id.* at 431.

I became final on appeal.

The court in *Green* held that where a trial court "did not enunciate any reasons for departure at sentencing"... "and the written order containing the reasons was not entered until one month after entry of the written judgment and sentences"... the departure must be reversed. *Green*, 527 So. 2d at 278. Similarly *Williams*, 515 So. 2d 1051 also conflicts with *Domberg II* and was also precedent prior to the time that *Domberg I* became final. In *Williams* at "the sentencing hearing the court did not announce the reasons it later expressed in its order, and that the order, signed more than two months after the sentencing, fails to comply" with the requirement of contemporaneous written reasons. *Id.* at 1053.

#### IV

#### **REASONS TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION**

Domberg II establishes dangerous separation of powers precedent by holding that the actions of the state in the filing and arguing of a motion for departure were a sufficient substitute for a legislatively mandated action on the part of the trial judge. Domberg II is a major inroad into the separation between the branches of government. No citizen can ever feel that the judiciary is independent and fair when appellate courts hold that an argument and motion by a prosecutor is a complete and satisfactory substitute for the exclusively judicial function of issuing "contemporaneous written reasons" for a 110 year departure sentence. Why have a judge, why should the legislature bother enacting the safeguards of "contemporaneous written reasons" for departure, when the prosecutor can satisfy these legislative mandates and judicial functions by filing a motion and arguing it.

The "pipeline doctrine" is fundamental to the appellate process. Every appellate case is affected by this doctrine.<sup>17</sup> Post conviction proceedings comprise a large amount of all appellate litigation. *Domberg II* creates precedent which insures that a large number of future cases will be wrongly decided. The First District Court of Appeal also misapplied the "pipeline doctrine" in *Kilo*.

This court should also accept jurisdiction because, instead of a fifteen year guideline sentence which would have expired, Domberg will remain incarcerated until the guideline sentence of 110 years expires,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> This court in *Smith*, 598 So. 2d 1063, recently attempted to remove all doubt as to the application of the "pipeline doctrine".

effectively the rest of his natural life. This inequity is too egregious to remain uncorrected. Cases involving more severe penalties are accorded a greater degree of review. Death penalty cases and capital punishment cases receive greater constitutional protection. The 110 year guideline sentence in the case before the court is effectively more severe than any penalty that can be imposed, with the exception of the death penalty, which this court must review. To allow Domberg to effectively spend the remainder of his natural life in prison because the First District Court of Appeal created a conflict in the case law and misapplied established principles of law, is wrong.

#### CONCLUSION

This court should accept jurisdiction to correct the conflict created by Domberg II with the opinions of this court and all of the other district courts of appeal.