SID J. WHITE

AUG 4 1994

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chilef Deputy Clerk

ROBERT DAVID DOMBERG, JR.,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 83,954

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAMES W. ROGERS SENIOR ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 0325791

GISELLE LYLEN RIVERA ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 0508012

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner may not properly invoke the powers of discretionary review of this Court as he is unable to show express and direct conflict between this case and another case which is factually on all fours and which applies the same principle of law to yield different results.

ARGUMENT

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Constitution and Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(2)(A)(iv), this Court may review a decision of a District Court of Appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court or with a decision of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. In determining whether conflict jurisdiction exists, this Court is limited to the facts as set forth within the four corners of the opinion, Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986), and must look at the decisions involved rather than a conflict in the opinions. Niemann v. Niemann, 312 So. 2d 733 (Fla. 1975). jurisdiction exists only in those instances in which the same principle of law is applied to identical facts to reach different results. Wilson v. Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph, 327 So. 2d 220 (Fla. 1976).

ISSUE I

JURISDICTION DOES NOT LIE BASED UPON AN ALLEGED CONFLICT CREATED BY THE LOWER COURT'S PURPORTED FAILURE TO RECOGNIZE THE "PIPELINE DOCTRINE."

Petitioner contends that conflict resulted when the First District failed to apply the "pipeline doctrine" to determine whether he received ineffective assistance of appellate counsel based upon counsel's failure to raise the absence of contemporaneous written reasons to support entry of a departure sentence.

He asserts this case is in direct conflict with Hill v. Dugger, 556 So. 2d 1385 (Fla. 1990); Fitzpatrick v. Wainwright, 490 So. 2d 938 (Fla. 1986); Wigfals v. Singletary, 624 So. 2d 320 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993); Jones v. Singletary, 621 So. 2d 760 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993); Wilson v. Singletary, 601 So. 2d 311 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992); Disinger v. State, 574 So. 2d 268 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991); and Hernandez v. State, 501 So. 2d 163 (Fla. 1987). These cases, however, are factually distinguishable from the case at bar.

In <u>Hill</u>, the Court rejected a claim that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to raise the alleged improper exercise of peremptory challenges by the state against black jurors. <u>Fitzpatrick</u> dealt with the claim that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to argue that the trial court erred in allowing the state to present evidence rebutting the existence of a statutory mitigating factor even though the defense had not, and represented it would not, rely upon that factor. In <u>Wigfals</u>, the

defendant claimed appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to anticipate the Whitehead decision which held habitualization was not a valid basis for departure. Jones held that appellate counsel's failure to raise sentencing errors was not ineffective where the state of the law was in flux and the issue should properly be raised by a Rule 3.800 motion. Wilson presented a case in which appellate counsel was not ineffective for failing to argue that temporal proximity was an invalid reason for departure based upon the state of the law at that time. Disinger dealt with appellate counsel's failure to raise a confrontation issue in a child sexual battery case. Finally, Hernandez was a case in which a trial court entered a departure sentence without ever setting forth written reasons in support of its sentence.

As the foregoing recitation of facts establish, none of the cases relied upon by the petitioner are factually on all fours with this case, since none involve the identical factual scenario which is before this Court. Because the cases are distinguishable on their facts, this Court must discharge the writ. Department of Revenue v. Johnston, 442 So. 2d 950 (Fla. 1983). Jurisdiction does not lie where the petitioner contends that the decision of the lower court conflicts with a principle of law rather than a specific decision.

 $^{^{}m 1}$ Whitehead v. State, 498 So. 2d 863 (Fla. 1986).

These errors dealt with enhancement based upon the use of a firearm where use of said firearm was an essential element of the crime and entry of conviction for two crimes on the basis of double jeopardy.

ISSUE II

CONFLICT DOES NOT EXIST BECAUSE THE LOWER COURT FOUND THAT THE TRIAL COURT HAD EXPLICITLY ADOPTED REASONS URGED BY THE STATE IN JUSTIFICATION OF ENTRY OF A DEPARTURE SENTENCE.

The petitioner contends that the decision below creates conflict by holding that the trial court implicitly adopted the reasons urged by the state in support of entry of a departure sentence when "no oral and effectively no written reasons for departure" were set forth.

The petitioner relies upon Barbera v. State, 505 So. 2d 413 (Fla. 1987); Wilson v. State, 485 So. 2d 42 (Fla. 5th DCA 1986); and Gaynor v. State, 479 So. 2d 246 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985), which are factually distinguishable from the instant case. In Barbera, the trial court orally adopted defense counsel's alternative plan for a guidelines departure, but did not enter a written order setting forth the points contained in the plan. Wilson distinguishable since the court improperly delegated authority to the prosecutor by writing on the scoresheet that the prosecutor was to file an addendum setting forth reasons for departure without any independent consideration by the court. Also see: Gaynor. Thus, none of these cases present instances in which the same legal principle is applied to identical factual circumstances to this case to achieve different results. Discharge of the writ is Department of Revenue v. Johnston, supra; Wilson v. Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph, supra.

Petitioner also claims that the lower court misapprehended State v. Lyles, 576 So. 2d 706 (Fla. 1991), and thus created conflict. This again is not а valid basis for conflict Had he believed that the court misapplied that case, the proper remedy would be a motion for rehearing. misapprehends the holding in Lyles. That case stands for the proposition that where written reasons are entered after the court orally pronounces entry of a departure sentence, no prejudice results to the defendant who is on notice regarding the reasons for departure. The issue is resolved by this Court's ruling in Blair v. State, 598 So. 2d 1068 (Fla. 1992), in which the Court held that Ree v. State, 565 So. 2d 1329 (Fla. 1990), modified, State v. Lyles, 576 So. 2d 706 (1991), applied prospectively only and also applied to those cases which were not yet final at the time the mandate in Ree issued in which it was raised. Here, the appellate counsel cannot be said to be ineffective for failing to anticipate the changes in law which began with Ree I and ended with Blair. Furthermore, as noted by the lower court, the rationales announced therein do not apply in this case as they are limited to cases involving direct appeals.

ISSUE III

THE OPINION BELOW DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH THE HOLDINGS OF WILSON, SMITH, GREEN, AND WILLIAMS.

Petitioner contends that the opinion below conflicts with cases which hold that when a notice of appeal is filed, the trial court is divested on jurisdiction to enter a written order. Wilson is a case in cases he relies upon are distinguishable. which a trial court changed the sentence from prison to probation after the sixty day period of jurisdiction for the modification or reduction of sentence had passed and the defendant had filed his notice appealing the prison term imposed. See also: Wolfson v. State, 437 So. 2d 174 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983). Smith, also addressed State v. Williams, 515 So. 2d 1051 (Fla. 3d DCA the same issue. 1987), is also distinguishable as it involves a case on direct appeal, rather than an appeal from the denial of an extraordinary It was also decided prior to the time that Ree was decided. In Green v. State, 527 So. 2d 277 (Fla. 2d DCA 1988), the trial court merely stated that it would articulate reasons to justify the departure at some future date without reference to previously articulated bases for departure. Green also possesses distinguishing factors present in Williams. Thus, the cases are distinguishable and the writ must be discharged.

As to the remaining arguments presented by petitioner, the State would note that these are policy arguments which are no recognized bases upon which to invoke the discretionary review of this Court.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument which establishes that petitioner has failed to set forth any case which directly and expressly conflicts with the lower court's decision, the respondent, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, respectfully requests that the instant petition for discretionary review be discharged.